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This little-altered, eight-story, Second Renaissance
Revival structure, situated in San Francisco's financial
district, served as headquarters for A.P. Giannini's Bank of
Italy from 1908 to 1921. Although F.T. Shea was the building's
architect, Giannini himself closely supervised its design and
construction. After he shifted his headquarters to a new
structure at One Powell Street in 1921, this edifice served
as a center of operations for the Liberty Bank System, a
Giannini-controlled holding company. In the 1930's it became
a branch of the Bank of America and has continued to serve
this purpose down to the present. Although two later Ciannini-
related Bank of Italy-Bank of America headquarters buildings
survive in San Francisco, as does his mansion in San Mateo,
the structure at 552 Montgomery Street is the most significant
extant Giannini building because it was here that he launched
the branch banking system which eventually made the Bank of
America the largest commercial bank in the world.

When A.P. Giannini and his associates launched the Bank
of Italy in North Beach on October 17, 1904, they were head-
quartered in a section of the Drexler Building on Montgomery
(now Columbus) Avenue which had formerly housed a saloon. After
the San Francisco earthquake and fire destroyed this structure
in 1906, the bank was forced to seek other quarters. Shortly
after this disaster, Giannini set up two makeshift offices.
One was located on the Washington Street wharf and utilized
only a plank for a counter while the other was in the the home
of Giannini's brother located at 2745 Van Ness Avenue. Within
a few weeks, however, the Bank of Italy found a more permanent
home at 632 Montgomery Street, not far from its birthplace.

About this same time, Giannini and his directors decided
to construct their own bank building. Accordingly the Bank
of Italy purchased a building site, from Giannini and his
stepfather Lorenzo Scatena, at the corner of Clay and Montgomery
Streets, for $125,000. Construction did not start until the
following year, however, because of the heavy demands for the
bank's funds due to the recent fire. Although F.T. Shea was
hired to design a suitable edifice, Giannini himself closely
supervised its design and construction.

On August 17, 1908, the new Bank of Italy Headquarters
at 552 Montgomery Street was opened to the public. Here, on égéa
the first floor in an open area, A.P. Giannini had his office
where all comers were invited to stop and chat about not only

(continued)
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financial but family matters as well. In a meeting room in
this building on October 12, 1909, Giannini and his directors
made the decision to organize a branch of the Bank of Italy
in San Jose, the first step in the creation of the Nation's
first statewide branch banking system.

By the end of World War I, the Bank of Italy had outgrown
its Montgomery Street Headquarters due to rapid expansion
and the leasing of much of its office space to outside tenants.
On June 27, 1921, the Bank of Italy headquarters was moved to
a new seven-story structure at One Powell Street. By 1941
this building had become too small for what was now called the
Bank of America. On December 9 of that year, headquarters was
shifted to a 12-story edifice at 300 Montgomery Street.

After 1921 the old building at the corner of Clay and
Montgomery served as headquarters for the Liberty Bank System,
a Giannini controlled holding company whose banks were event-
ually merged into the Bank of America. In the 1930's, the
first floor of this facility became a branch of the bank of
America and has served that function down to the present day.
Presently, the upper floors are utilized by Bank of America's
World Banking Division.

This steel-framed, westward-facing structure consists of
a two-story base, a four-story shaft, and a two-story crown.
The shaft rises from the front half of the base, which rests
on 35-foot-deep concrete and cantilever foundations, and 1s
sheathed in quoined Plumas County granite. The first floor
and basement banking area is set off by the use of a stone
entablature with a dentiled cornice at the base of the second
floor and by large rounded quoined arches, separated by
quoined pilasters, which not only serve as window and door
openings but help to create an arcaded effect as well. Windows
in this section are fixed, are set in bronze frames, and have
decorated stone lugsills. Originally, the front entrance
featured heavy bronze doors, but these have been removed.
Their frame which features rosettes, a recessed transom, and
fanlights, remains, however. On the second floor, the windows
are set in much smallery rounded, quoined arches, are of the
three-over-three sash variety, and feature sword-like motiffs
on the piers separating them. The division between base and

%gdy is delineated by a balustrade along the top of the second
oor.
; (continued)
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Stories three through six form the shaft of the building.
Vertical piers faced with quoined Bedford limestone rise un-
interrupted from the base to the top of the fifth floor where
they are interrupted by a stone course. Sixth floor piers are
faced with similar material but feature quoined corners with
recessed panels. Windows in this section are set in rectangular
surrounds and are of the three-over-three sash variety.

Window surrounds are generally unadorned except for those on
the third floor which feature triangular-shaped hoodmoulds.
The shaft of the bullding 1s separated from the crown by a
dentiled cornice and balustrade at the top of the sixth floor.

The crown consists of floors seven and eight and in
contrast with the rest of the structure features smooth-faced
Bedford limestone. Pilasters, designed to resemble Ionic
columns, support a massive, decorated stone entablature which
is capped with an overhanging dentiled cornice. Arcaded
windows with spandrels not only provide lighting but add a
decorative touch as well. Additional lighting is provided for
eighth floor offices by small square-shaped windows set in
the entablature.

Inside, the Bank of Italy Building exhibits a number of
original features, chiefly in the first floor and basement
banking areas. The plaster ceilings and walls on the first
floor are decorated with the bright colors and old gold
typical of the Italian Renaissance style. This area also
features carrera marble flooring and a staircase of the same
material; Pavanazzo marble bank counters, tables, and wain-
scoting; a large vault; and decorative bronze lighting fixtures
with glass globes. Although the original bronze tellers'
cages have been removed, the present ones, which were installed
during a recent remodeling, appear to date to the pre-World
War I era. The basement area has been extensively altered,
its cellings lowered, and its marble flooring replaced with
cement and tile. One of its few original features is its
huge vault with 5,000 safe deposit boxes. Floors two through
elght have been completely modernized and exhibit few original
features.

In general, the structure's exterior has undergone little-
alteration over the years except for the removal of its bronze
doors and the construction of an additional entrance at its

(continued)
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north end. In the late 1920's, the construction of the
Scatena Building obliterated the visual effect of its south

end and necessitated the bricking up of the windows on
this side.

Situated in San Francisco's financial section, the Bank
of Italy Headquarters Building is still being used for banking
purposes, and it is well-maintained. Directly north of the
structure on the opposite side of Clay Street is the gigantic
Transamerica pyramid, which provides visual linkeage between the
beginning and the culmination of A.P. Giannini's dream of
a commercial banking empire.
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Amadeo Peter Gilannini, according to historians Marquis
and Bessie R. James, "was the greatest innovator in modern
banking."l Not only did he build the tiny Bank of Italy,
which he founded in San Francisco in 1904 and later renamed
Bank of America, into the largest commercial bank in the
world, but he probably did more to democratize and popularize
banks than any other individual. Because he "opposed the
aristocratic notion of banking with its formality, conservative
policies, and high interest rates," CGiannini, argues scholar
Joseph Giovincoe, "established the Bank of Italy on a
democratic basis. There the little fellow was welcomed and
respected, given the same service as Ehe big fellow, and
granted financial aid on easy terms."

Glannini also shocked the traditional banking fraternity
by advertising widely for both borrowers and depositors, and
by hiring individuals to solicit business for his bank on a
door-to-dbor basis. As a result of these unorthodox methods,
Giannini, says historian Betty Lochrie Hoag, "introduced the
advantages of banking to many lower-income people who had
gevirngntered a bank, let alone dreamed of owning a deposit

ook.

By 1909, Giannini, impelled by what distinguished
historian Frederick Lewis Allen has described as "a sincere
belief in branch banking coupled with a fervid ambition," had
begun to establish, branches of the Bank of Italy in other
California cities.! By the end of 1918 he had established

(continued)

lMarquis and Bessie R. James, Biography of A Bank: The
Story of Bank of America N.T. & S.A. (New York, 1954), 2.

2Joseph Glovinco, "Democracy in Banking: The Bank of Italy
and California's Italians," California Historical Society
Quarterly, XLVIII (September, 1968), 195. /9

3Betty Lochrie Hoag, "A Man of Charisma: A.P. Giannini in
San Mateo, California, La Peninsula, XVII (Spring, 1973), 2.

4Frederick Lewis Allen, The Lords of Creation (Chicago,
1966)., :325.
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24 branches throughout California and had total resources of
more than $93 million, making the Bank of Italy, according
to Giannini biographer Vincent P. Carosso, "the first state-
wide branch-banking system in the United States."?

During the 1920's, Giannini formed several holding
companies and attempted to establish a transcontinental and
worldwide system of branch banks. Although he failed to
realize this goal, by 1945 his Bank of Italy, now rechristened
Bank of America, "had become the world's largest commercial
bank," says Carosso, "with 493 bganches in California and
assets of more than $5 billion." Since Giannini's death in
1949, the Bank of America has maintained its position of
dominance in the field of commercial banking. Today, in
addition to its 1,060 offices in California, it has direet
representation in 95 countries and territories throughout
the world.

This little-altered, eight-story, Second Renaissance
Revival structure, situated in San Francisco's financial
district, served as headquarters for A.P. Giannini's Bank of
Italy from 1908 to 1921, and it was here that he launched the
branch Banking system which eventually made the Bank of America
(the name adopted by the Bank of Italy in 1930) the largest
commercial bank in the world. In the 1930's the 0ld head-
quarters at 552 Montgomery Street became a branch of the Bank
of America and has continued to serve this purpose down to
the present. Directly north of it on the opposite side of
Clay Street is the gigantic Transamerica pyramid, which provides
visual linkeage between the beginning ‘and the culmination of A.P.
Giannini's dream of a commercial banking empire.

5Vincen’c P. Carosso, "Amadeo Peter Giannini," Dictionary
of American Biography, Supplement Four (New York, 197§), 325-26.

61p1d., 326.

GPO 892 455



Form No. 10-300a
(Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET Ban)c of Ttaly HTEMNUMBER 8§  PAGE  tyo

History

Amadeo Peter Giannini was born May 6, 1870, in San Jose,
Calif., to Luigi and Virginia D. Giannini, both of whom had
recently immigrated to the United States from Genoa, Italy.
At the time of Amadeo's birth, Luigi operated a 20-room hotel
in San Jose, but 1 year later he abandoned this venture and
purchased a farm on the outskirts of the city. In 1877,
however, Luigi was killed in a dispute with a farm hand,
leaving Amadeo and his two brothers fatherless. 'A few months
later, their mother married Lorenzo Scatena, a self-employed
teamster.

In 1882 Scatena moved the family to San Francisco and
went to work for one of the city's leading produce firms.
Less than a year later, he founded his own wholesale produce
firm and hired Amadeo to help him when he was not in school.
After completing the eighth grade, Amadeo left regular school and
attended business school for 5 months before going to work
for his stepfather full time. From 1883 to 1901, young
Giannini devoted himself to building L. Scatena & Company
into one of the city's leading produce firms. In 1892
Scatena rewarded him for his contributions to the company's
success by making him a partner with a one-third share of
the profits, which was increased to one-half just 2 years later.

By 1901 Giannini was in such comfortable financial
circumstances that he decided to retire. He sold his share
of the produce business for $100,000 and invested most of
his savings in real estate. His retirement abruptly ended
in 1902 when Joseph Cuneo, his father-in-law, died, leaving
an estate worth $500,000 and no will, and the family requested
that Giannini manage their holdings. Included in the Cuneo
portfolio were a few shares in the Columbus Savings and Loan
Society, a small bank in the predominantly Italian North Beach
section of San Francisco. While serving as a trustee for
this institution, Giannini increasingly found himself in
conflict with the bank's managers because of what he considered
thelr excessively tight lending policies, their refusal to
make small loans, and their apparent contempt for the working
class.

(continued)
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On October 17, 1904, Giannini and five other former
directors of the Columbus bank, including his stepfather
Lorenzo Scatena, opened the Bank of Italy, capitalized at
$300,000, in a building in North Beach that had formerly
housed a saloon. From the very beginning, despite the fact
that he was not an officer and held a rather small share of
the stock, Giannini dominated the bank's proceedings,
largely because he "possessed," says Hoag, "that illusive
quality called charisma, which would endear him to people
throughout his entire 1ife."! The little bank flourished

from the start, and within a year had assets of over $1
million.

Much of this success was due to Giannini's unorthodox
operating methods. Because he "opposed the aristocratic
notion of banking with its formality, conservative policies,
and high interest rates," Giannini, claims Giovinco, "estab-
lished the Bank of Italy on a democratic basis. There the
little fellow was welcomed and respected, given the same
service as the big fellow, and granted financial aid on easy
terms."8 Giannini also broke precedent by conducting wide
scale advertising campaigns to attract both borrowers and
depositors, and by hiring individuals to solicit business
for his bank on a door-to-door basis. As a result, Giannini,
says Hoag, "introduced the advantages of banking to many
lower-income people who had never gntered a bank, let along
dreamed of owning a deposit book."

Giannini also boosted the bank's fortunes with his
boldness and daring in meeting the challenges posed by
natural disaster and economic downturn. His "bold and re-
sourceful behavior during the great San Francisco earthquake
and fire of April 1906," says Carosso, increased his standing
with the city's civic and business elite and "enhanced the
reputation of his bank."10 Shortly before fire destroyed

(continued)

7Hoag, "A Man of Charisma," La Peninsula, XVII, 2.
8Giov1nco, "Democracy in Banking," California Historical,f~a

Society Quarterly, XLVIII, 195.
9Hoag, "A Man of Charisma," La Peninsula, XVII, 2.

lOCarosso, "Amadeo Peter Giannini," Dictionary of American
Bilography, Supplement Four, 325.
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his bank, Giannini had loaded two wagons with money, covered
the money pouches with vegetables and fruit, and drove them

to his home in San Mateo. Within 9 days, well before any
other San Francisco bank, the Bank of Italy had reopened,
using a plank counter for an office. During the Panic of 1907,
the Bank of Italy was one of the few banks which continued to
pay gold on demand, largely because Giannini had anticipated
trouble and had accumulated a large quantity of gold.

In 1908 Giannini attended a banking conference where he
heard former Secretary of the Treasury Lyman Gage and Woodrow
Wilson, at that time president of Princeton University,
advocate branch banking on the grounds that it would increase
credlt for local merchants and farmers and generally improve
the image of banking among the public. Giannini was converted
to the cause, and within a few years, according to historian
William E. Leuchtenburg, came to be known as "the greatest of
the branch bankers."ll "1n 1909, the Bank of Italy opened its
first out-of-town branch office in San Jose by purchasing a
small and struggling bank in that city and converting it--
thus establishing a pattern that was to be repeated many times
in the coming years. By 1918 Giannini had established 24
branches throughout California and had total resources of
more than $93 million, making the Bank of Italy, says Carosso,
"the first statewide branch-banking system in the United States."12

During the 1920's, Giannini attempted to establish a trans-
continental and worldwide system of branch banks. Because of
legal restrictions on the operating areas of branch banks, he
created a series of holding companies which enabled him to
operate any place he pleased. His Bancitaly Corporation
controlled not only the Bank of Italy and several banks over-
seas but three other holding companies, the Liberty Bank
System, the Bank of America System, and the Commercial
National System as well. These firms not only enabled Giannini
to legally bypass the efforts of California officials to limit
the Bank of Italy's growth but enabled him to obtain a foot-
hold in New York City as well. In 1928 all four of these

(continued)

llWilliam E. Leuchtenburg, The Perils of Prosperity, 1914-
1932 (Chicage, 1958). 191,

12Carosso, "Amadeo Peter Giannini," Dictionary of American
Biography, Supplement Four, 325-26.
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companies were absorbed into Giannini's Transamerica
Corporation. This gigantic holding company not only had
banking assets of over $2 billion but controlled such non-
banking firms as Occidental Life Insurance Company and General
Foods Corporation as well.

The Great Depression forced Giannini to abandon his
dream of branch banks throughout the Nation and the world.
For a brief period he lost control of the Bank of America
(in 1920 Giannini dropped the name Bank of Italy and renamed
most of his banks Bank of America) and the Transamerica
Corporation. Angered by the policy of contraction followed
by the new management which included selling the firm's New
York City holdings, Giannini regained control again in 1932
after a successful proxy fight.

Under Giannini's direction, the Bank of America made a
remarkable recovery from the Depression. Between 1932 and
1939, its resources grew from $876.3 million to nearly $1.6
billion. During World War II, the bank's growth continued
apace due in large part to the population influx caused by
war industry. By 1945, says Carosso, the Bank of America
"had become the world's largest commercial bank with 493
branches in California and assets of more than $5 billion."13
Shortly after the war ended, the bank established branches in
a number of foreign countries. Just as this program was
getting underway, however, CGiannini died of a heart attack
at his home in San Mateo on June 3, 1949, a few weeks after
his 79th birthday.

Since Giannini's death, the Bank of America has maintained
its position of dominance in the field of commercial banking.
Today, in addition to its 1,060 offices in California, it has
direct representation in 95 countries and territories throughout
the world. As of December 31, 1975, its assets stood at
$66,763,054,000; its deposits at $56,544,789,000; and its
outstanding loans at $32,555,152,000.

131bia., 326. @
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April 1976

BANK OF AMERICA NT &SA
and
BANKAMERICA CORPORATION
A Brief Historical Sketch
The story 6:’ Bank of America National Trust and Savings Association
begins on the mor:{ing of October 17, 1904, when a small neighborhood
bank opened for business in a remodeled tavern at Washington Street and
"Columbus Avenue in the North Beach area of San Francisco.
Prime mover behind the new bank was a big man with a big idea.
The man: Amadeo Peter Giannini -- tall, muscular, thirty-four, California-born
son of immigrant parents. The idea: a revolutionary—f¢f-the-»times philosophy

to offer wage earners and small businesses the banking services traditionally

reserved for wealthy individuals and large companies.

Twenty-eight new accounts and $8,780 in deposi*s were received that

ﬁrst' day vby the B;nk- of Italy, the name of the organization until 1930. But
through hard work, long hours, and door-to-door solicitétions, Giannini and
the bank officers prbved the soundness of the newv concept in banking, By
the end of 1904, the little bank that had opened with $i50,000 capital showed
deposits of $703,024 and resources in excess of $1 millicn.

Di‘saster struck on April 18, 1906, when San Francisco was torn apart :
and gutted by the -vorst earthquake and fire in the city's ﬁistory. As the flames
swept toward the Sank, Giannini loaded $80,006 .cash into wagons and moved.
it to his San Matéo home for safekeeping. Days béfore th2 larger banks could

reopen, he was dispensing loans from a plank-and-bar:el counter at the



waterfront, seasoning each credit advance with his pers-onal enthusiasm to
rebuild a better city.

As the new San Francisco rose from the rubble, the young bank grew
and prospered. Suund management, sparked by the imagination and optimism
of A. P. Giannini, steered it safely through the bank-clcsing Panic of 1907.

In that year a branch of the bank was opened in San Fraucizco, and in 1909 the
first out-of-town branch was opened in San Jose, fifty miles to the south.

Giannini visualized a statewidé banking éystem, wnd despite opposifion
frqm some officials and competitors, made continuing progress in his efforts
to help "the little man." Several branches were added ii: the Bay Area and two
more in Los Angeles. By the end of 1918, there were 24 branches serving
cities from Santa Rosa in the north to Los Angeles in the scuth. Total resources
stood at $93,546,162.

During the Booming Twenties, while speculators‘ made and lost fortunes
in California 611, movies, and real estate, the bank's loan department expanded
carefully and persistently with Giannini's slogan of "Safety Before Profits."

By the close of the bank's 25th anniversary year, there were 292 branches,
over. 7,000 employees, and more than $1 billion in resciurces.

In 1930, Giannini, sixty years of age and in pocr health, relinquished
control of the bank to Elisha Walker, a promising young banker from New York:,
Walker, and his eastern appréach to banking, ran into difficulties almost
immediately as the' depression deepened, incomes tumb’2d, and deposits fell
off rapidly. In mid-1931 he called a meeting of the bank's executive committee

to lay out a program for breaking up Bank of America and salvaging pieces

through contraction and liquidation.



Giannini, recovering from his illneés in a Germ«n health fesort, received
the news with shock, then outrage. Returning home, he vigorously protested
- the Walker plan and barnstormed the length and breadth of California soliciting
proxies of the bank's stockholders in support of his prirciples and leadership.
So successful was his campaign, so strong was the stockholders' belief in
Giannini's abil{ty to save Bank of America, that he won ¢ landslide victory
in a special stockholders meeting on February 15, 1932.

At this time, when national employment and incomes were hitting record
lows and bank deposits were falling, Giannini, now ful]y‘;‘ecovered in health,
again took on the active leadership of the bank. In exactly 41 days he was
showing deposit gains, and by the end of 1932 had repaic" some $54 million in
RFC loans, acquired more than 217,000 new and reﬁurned aepositors, showed
deposits of $749,R58,000 and had launched a "Back to Good Times" advertising
campaign to helb the state pull itself up from the depths of the depression.

On January 14, 1936, Lawrence Mario Giannini, senior vice president and
son of the foundef, was elected president of Bank of America. With tﬁe elder
Gianﬁini retaining the chairmanship of the board, the two continued the bank's
tradition of being a friend to the man of modest means.

Like his iather, Mario Giannini—';Sioneeréd new trend; in banking.h—(?rga“
of these, Timeplan lending, an installment loan s'ervicé,' helped place thé bank
first in the nation in the amount of money loaned. By the end 6f 1942, there

were 487 branch banks and $2,771, 689,632 in resources=.

With the advent of World War IT, California became an arsenal and its
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population mushroomed. The bank played a vital role i:n providing financial
assistance and leadership in these years of crisis. The v’artime economy
boomed, deposits rose, and in October, 1945, Bank of America's resources

of §5,037,500,000 surpassed those of any other commercial bank.

As World War II came to an end, the bank begar to. expand its overseas
operations which, ub until then, had been limited to a branch in London.

Bank of America (International) was organized in New Yurk in 1950. Branches
were opened in London, Duesseldorf, Manila, Bangkok, Gﬁam, Tokyo,
Yokohama, Kobe, and Osaka.

A. P. Gianuini, foundér-—chairman of the bank, died on June 3, 1949, a
few weeks after his 79th birthday. Three years later his son Mar‘io passed
away, and Carl F'. Wente, 35 years with Bank of America and vice chairman
of its executive com-mittee, was elected to succeed him as president. Wente
retired in 1‘954 at '65, and at the end of that year the ba’nk' had 548 branches and
$9,163,355,289 in resources.

In 1954, leadership of Bank of America was placed in the hands of S. Clark
Beise, a seasoned banker who had joined the bank as a vice president in
1936 at the personal invitation of A. P. Giannini.

Under Beise's direction, iBank of America led the nation's banks into the
electronics age with the de-velopment of ERMA, the first fully automated
electronic accounting system in the industry. Beise moved vigorously to
expand the bank bogh domestically and overseas. .In 1957,. controlling

interest was purchased in Banca d'America e d'Italia with 65 branches in



Italy, In 1962, the bank gained entrance into several ccuntries in Africa
through purchase of an interest in the Finahcial Corporation for Overseas
Countries in Genéva, Switzerland, By the end of 1963, internationally-
based resources totaled $2.5 billion. When Beis.e retired“ in 1963, Bank of
America comprised 846 branches in California and 22 overseas branches,
plus 82 branches of Banca d'America e d'Italia and interests in financial
institutions in countries throughout the world. Beise reiired as president
in 1963 but continues as an honorary director of the bark.

In 1963, Rudolph A. Peterson, who was born in Sweden just seven weeks
a>fter the bank was founded, was elected president. Peterson renewed the
emphasis on the perSonal approach to customer needs which has been the
cornerstone of Baﬁk of America since its founding. He 2lso pursued an
aggressive policy to continue expansion 6f the bank's irternational activities.

When Petersqn retired» at 65 on January 1, 1970, the bank had
955 California branches and 96 overseas. Resources had increased to $25.5
billion, including international resources. which had grown to $7 billion.
Meantime, in 1969; the bank formed a holding company cailed BankAmerica
Corporation to énéble the continuing bank and its affiliates to meet the
chanéing demands for new and additional services to customers and share
fully in the growth of the financial services market.

Upon Peterson's retirement, A. W. "Tom" Clausen was elected
president and chief executive officer of both Bank of America NT&SA and
BankAmerica Corporation. Peterson continues as an honorary director. Assuming

leadership in January 1970 at the age of 46, Clausen renewed emphasis on



social responsikil.ties of the organization as well as improvement of services
and continued expansion in national and international financial markets."

Thus the story of the world's largest bank which began in San Francisco
over 70 years agb_continues to unfold.

As of M,ar‘ch. 31, 1976 there were 1,060 offices of 3ank of America in
Californié, 108 overseas branches, 13 overseas representative offices, and
o.verYIOO subsidieries'and other equity investments outside thé United States --
collectively giving the bank direct representation in 95 couﬂntries and territories.
In add.ition, Ban.k of America, New York, holds controlling interest in Banca
d'America e d'Itavli:a with 85 offices in Italy. Bamerical International Financial
Corporation, Sa'r: Francisco, a wholly owned investment subsidiary of Bank of
America NT&SA, holds Bankhaus Centrale Credit A.G., M%)énchengladbach,
with 26 offices in West Germany and West Berlin. ' 5

Overseas }o‘ffices and subsidiaries are staffed by 9,884 people, nearly
al_l of whom aré indigenods to countries in which the offices‘ and subsidiaries
are located. In Cal'lfornia, Bank of America has more thén 52,932 employees.

As of December 317, 1975, total assets stood at $66,763,054, total
deposits amounted to $56,544,789, a.nd loans outstanding totaled $32,555,152.

Bank of America now assists and counsels the world's industrial and
commercial giants, and it continues to look after the necds of its individual
customers. Its services range from a wide variety of savings and checking

accounts to the worldwide bank credit card (BankAmericard) and numerous

computerized services for customers. Servicing international accounts
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throughout the United States are four "Edge Act ofﬁces"' in New York,
Chicago, Miami and Houston.

In 1973 BankAmerica Corporation (BAC) took a significant step in
the growth of its. firancial activities with the acquisitioh- of GAC Pinanqe,
Inc., one of the na;ion's leading consumer finance companies. In 1974
the name of the cdlnpany was changed to FinanceAmerica Zorporation.

Other major subsidiaries of BankAmerica Corporztion include: Decimus
Corporation, a coxﬁputer leasing and financial data processing company;

BA Investment Management Corporation (BAIMCO), an invesiment and research
services organization; BankAmerica Realty Services, Inc. (BARSI), adviser to
BankAmerica Realty Ihvestors (BARI) . one of the country'~ major real estate
investment trusts; BA Cheque Corporation, which administers the BankAmerica-
Travelers Chques program, and BA Mortgage Company, Inc., which has
eight divisional oflices in primary real estate markets across the country

that make and seli loans while continuing to service them.

In keeping with the renewed emphasis on social awareness, Bank of
America in 1972 ap-pointed a member of senior management to direct the bénk's
social policy. in 1973, this responsibility was placed with -Senior Vice
President James F. Langton.

In April 1374, Clausen initiated a major restructuring of Bank of
America's wholesale banking operations that consolidates national and global
services into a single management unit known as the World Banking Division.
The reorganization was accomplished with the opening of Asia headquarters

in Tokyo and Latin American headquarters in Caracas by July 1975. Headquarters
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for Europe were established in London and for North America in Los Angeles
in 1974. In addition an area office for the Middle East and Africa was opened
in Beirut. V

Chauncey J. Medberry, chairman of the bank's board of directors and
of the holding company's board of directors, heads the World Banking Division.

The reorganization decentralizes activities of the bank and strengthens
line authority in the field on a worldwide basis. The mave enables the bank to
serve customers more directly wherever they are located and to meet opportunities
of banking which for the remainder of the century will di’fer substantially from
the traditional banking of past decades.

Other tob executives of the bank include: C .H. Baumhefner, vice
chairman of the board for both the bank and the holding company and deputy
executive officer for World Banking; D.S. Langsdorf, executive vice president
and senior édministfative officer for premises and data services; Arthur V.
Toupin, executive vice president and senior administrative officer for bank
1nvest;r1ents, fiduciary and communications services; J.A. Carrera, executive
_vice president and head of the California Division; Joseph Schmedding, executive
vicé president aﬁd head of the trust department; Walter E. Hoadley, executive
vice president and chief economist; Lloyd J. Sugaski, executive vice president
and executive officer for loans; Thomas A. Deane, executivé vice president
and head of the North America Division; Leland S. Prussia, Jr., executive
vice president and cashier; A.C. Rice, executive vice president and head of

the Europe, Middle East and Africa Division; W.H. Bolin, executive vice
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president and head of the Latin America Division; Louis ). Mulkern, executive

vice president in charge of Asia Division; Paul E. Sullivan_  executive vice

. president for administration of Southern California activities; C.M. van

Vlierde»n, executive vice president for global planning and strategy for World
Banking Division; George A. Skoglund, executive vice president for personnel
’administration;' George W. Coombe, Jr., executive vice president and general

counsel; and Ken'dall D. Martin, senior vice president and controller.

i



October 14, 1976

Ms. Paula Boghosian

Department of Parks and Recreation
Historic Preservation Section

P. O. Box 2390

Sacramento, California 95811

Dear Ms. Boghosian:

At the suggestion of Dr. ifellon, I am directing our reply to his
letter of September 3, 1976, to you. Ve have studied both the California
Inventory of Historic Resources and the individual recommendations that he
made for our NPS-sponsored survey of potential MiL's in California related
to cormerce and industry. Several of the properties seem to have NHL
potential, but we will not be able to nominate any of them. With the help
of the SHPO's, we have identified so many deserving sites in our survey,
that the Park Service has now asked us to restrict our ML nominations dur-
ing this contract year to only a few subthemes, such as banking, commodity
exchanges, the automobile industry, and some half dozen others. The sites
from your inventory and list that seem most significant nationally--

Folsom Powerhouse, Alvarado Beet Sugar Factory, Best Tractor Company, Canmery
Row, C § H Sugar Company Factory, the Borax work, the hotels, Harvey House
- in Barstow, and others--fall into subthemes now scheduled for study presumably
in 1977-78. The result of this should be the nomination of more California
sites than would have been possible in a one-year survey.

We do, however, want to nominate now an appropriate historic
structure for A. P. Giannini and the Bank of America, primarily because of
its contributions to the concept of branch banking and its ecarly lending
goliciels(; Can you help us locate such a building, hopefully within the next

ew weeks?

Giannini's first bank building, the Bank of Italy, stood at
1 Montgomery Avenue in San Francisco and was destroyed in the earthquake
and fire of 1906. It was soon recbuilt at the southeast corner of Clay and
Montgomery Streets. This remained his banking headquarters wmtil 1921.
From 1921 to 1941 Giannini apparently had his chief banking office at
1 Powell Street in San Francisco. Finally, according to the best information
available to us here, Giannini lived from sometime prior to 1904 until his
death in a San Mateo home that he called Seven Oaks.
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Ms. Paula Boghosian
Page 2
October 14, 1976

For all of these that are extant we need to know the correct
address, owner's name and address, and present general condition. We
will appreciate any assistance you can give us, and we will look forward
to hearing from you soon.

Grateful .,

George R. Adams
Director
Historic Landmarks Project

GRA/1nk
cc: Dr. Knox Mellon
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA—THE RESOURCES ..GENCY EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Governor

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION

[ L
P.O. BOX 2390
SACRAMENTO 95811

(916) 445-2358

OCT 22 1976

Mr. R. Adams, Director

Historic Landmarks Project

American Association for State and
Local History

1400 8th Avenue South

Nashville, Tennessee 37203

Dear Mr. Adams:

This is in response to your letter of September 8, 1976 requesting suggested
historic landmarks associated with A. P. Giannini under the theme '"Commerce,
Finance, and Industry'.

The California Office of Historic Preservation could not locate any sites
associated with Giannini in either the Inventory or in any of the State or Federal
landmark files. We did find information on Giannini's life and the founding of
the Bank of Italy in reference books and biographies. The following list of
suggestions was compiled from Mildred Brooke Hoover's Historic Spots in California
(Stanford: Stanford University Press, 1966) and Marquis and Bessie R. James'
Biography of a Bank: The Story of the Bank of America (New York: Harper and
Brothers, 1954).

s Swiss Hotel, Market Street, San Jose, California: Giannini's birthplace
\Z on May 6, 1870. The twenty-room hotel was owned by his father,
Luigi Giannini.

2o L. Scatena and Company, Washington Street, San Francisco, California:
In 1882, Giannini moved to San Francisco with his mother and stepfather,
Luigi Scatena. His stepfather owned a produce business in the North

\% Beach area. By age 12, Giannini was an enthusiastic employee. The
company had three successive locations, first on the southwest corner
of Washington and Davis Streets, second at 313 Washington, and third
at Drum and Washington, where Giannini became a full partner in the
business at age 19.

L\3. Giannini's boyhood homes in North Beach, San Francisco: First at
Jackson between Mason and Powell, second at John Street between Mason
and Powell, and third on Green Street.

4, Seven Oaks, San Mateo, California: Giannini's home from about 1900
+ " until his death in 1949.

Sis First location of the Bank of Italy, Drexler Building, Washington
Street (intersection of Columbus Avenue and Montgomery Street), San
~ ' Francisco: In 1904, Giannini opened his first bank in the North Beach




Mr. R. Adams

Page 2.

Y.

neighborhood, promising to serve the small investor. The building was
completely destroyed in the 1906 earthquake. Temporary offices were
established at 2745 Van Ness Avenue and 632 Montgomery Street. An
outdoor "stall", often manned by Giannini himself, was set up on the
Washington Street Wharf. :

First head office of the Bank of Italy, Southeast corner of Clay and

Montgomery Streets, San Francisco: In 1908, Giannini opened his
headquarters in the heart of the San Francisco financial district.
The nine-story building, supposedly earthquake proof, was considered
one of the most beautiful and the most modern buildings of the time.
A city branch office was opened at 3343 Mission Street, San Francisco,
in 1907.

First out-of-town branch office of the Bank of Italy, the corner of

Santa Clara and Lighthouse Streets, San Jose: In 1910, Giannini opened
a branch office in San Jose, California, paving the way for the estab-
lishment of hundreds of other branches throughout California and the
United States.

We hope these suggestions are helpful in your survey efforts. If you need
further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact Dr. Knox Mellon of the
Office of Historic Preservation, Department of Parks and Recreation, Post Office
Box 2390, Sacramento, California 95811; (916) 445-8006.

Sincerely,

Director

A-2/1
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October 27, 1976

Mr. Herbert Rhodes

State Historic Preservation Officer
Director

Department of Parks and Recreation
Post Office Box 2390

Sacramento, California 95811

Thank you for your letter of October 22 and the list of
addresses of residencial and commercial structures associated with
A, P. Giannini. :

Perhaps by now you have seen our letter of October 14 to Paula -

Boghosian in which we commented on several sites that your staff

had recommended to us and in which we restated in more specific

terms our request for assistance with Giannini. I'm sure your letter
and ours crossed in the mail., In any event, we now have the inform-
ation we need, and we are grateful for your continued assistance.

We will check with local agencies in San Mateo and San Francisco
regarding Seven Oaks and Gilanninl's Powell Street headquarters.
If we determine that one of these properties 1s extant and should
be nominated for NHL designation, we will let you know.

Sincerely,

George R. Adams
Director
Historlc Landmarks Project

GRA:dg

cc: Ms. Paula Boghosian and Dr. Knox Mellon
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ot ' October 27, 1976

Mr. John L. Frisbee

Western Field Service Representative
West Coast Office

National Trust for Historic Preservation
802 Montgomery Street

San Francisco, California 94133

At the request of the National Park Service we are conducting
a study of potential National Historic Landmarks related to commerce,
finance, and industry. As part of this work we are searching for
an extant property associated with A.P. Giannini and the Bank of
America. -

We have 1dentified, through our own research and with the
assistance of the California State Historic Preservation Officer,
several sites of Glannini-related buildings, but we have been unable
to learn the current status of a building that held Giannini's

‘banking headquarters at 1 Powell Street in San Francisco from about

1921 to about 1940. Can you help us ascertain whether it 1s extant?
If the structure is extant, we need to know who owns it and where
they may be reached. :

We will be grateful for any assistance you can give us.

Sincerely,

George R. Adams
Director
Historic Landmarks Project
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October 27, 1976

Mr. Leslie O. Merrill

Director

San Mateo County Historical Association
1700 West Hillsdale Boulevard

San Mateo, California 94402

Dear Mr. Merrill:
At the request of the National Park Service we are preparing

a series of research repofts on potential National Historic Land-
marks associated with commerce, finance, and industry. We believe

-that "Seven Oaks," the former home of A. P. Glannini, in San Mateo

might qualify for consideration as a potential NHL, and we are 1n
need of information that will help us make that determination.

The first and most important question 1s whether the residence
is extant. If it 1is we need to know its address, 1ts general
condition and degree of alteration, and 1ts owner's name and his
address. We will be most grateful for any assistance you can gilve
us in obtaining this information. If you have access to any hist-
orical background material on the property we will appreciate that
tOO- :

For your own information I am enclosing a NHL brochure. We
look forward to hearing from you soon.

Sincerely,

George R. Adams
Director
Historic Landmarks Project

GRA:dg

Enclosure
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November 8, 1976

Mr. George R. Adams, Director

Historic Landmarks Project

American Association for State and Local History
1400 Eight Avenue South

Nashville, Tennessee 37203

Dear Mr. Adams:

The Bank of America building at 1 Powell Street still operates
as a branch office of that bank. It is known as the Day and
Night Branch. I contacted the bank and learned that they employ
- three people in an archival department headed by Mr. Orville G.
,190”7 Wilson, Archivist. You can write to Mr. Wilson throught Depart-

(A ment 3218, Bank of America, 315 Montgomery Street, San Francis-
////;/’ —> co, California 94137 (415) 622-4997. I was told that the bank
ks

has a wealth of information, photos, books and relics related
to the development of Mr. Giannini's bank.

If we can be of any further assistance to you with this project
please do not hesitate to call. We would be very interested in
seeing the list of properties you are considering in the western
states.

Sincerely,

Vi1 s fal

Bradford Pdul
Service Assistant

Headquarters Office: 740-748 Jackson Place, N.W., Washington, D. C. 20006 (202) 382-3304
Midwest Office: 1800 South Prairie Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60616 (312) 842-0170



November 12, 1976

Mr. Bradford Paul

Service Assistant

West Coast Office

National Trust for Historic Preservation
802 Montgomery Street

San Francisco, California 94133

Dear Mr. Paul:

Thank you for the very helpful information about the
Bank of America building at 1 Powell Street. I'm sure
that Mr. Wilson will be able to provide us with everything
we need.

In answer to your question about other west coast
properties that we might include in our 1ist of NHL n
nominations, I'm afraid there will be very few. As you
know the northeast region of our country has historically
been the chief center of commerce and industry, and
therefore the bulk of our nominations will be in that 'area. -

In addition, due to the number of deserving properties
that we have identified already in our survey, the Park
Service has decided to restrict our NHL nominations in
the current contract year to finance, marketing (retail
and wholesale), and the iron, steel, petroleum, automobile,
textile, and tobacco industries. The nomination of NHL's
in other subcategories, including fishing and lumbering
which are more applicable to the west coast, has been
postponed until at least next year.

Our consideration of west coast sites 1s also
restricted by the existence of other survey themes with
.which we are instructed to avoid duplication. These
include transportation, the fur trade, mining for precious

»z”l;ﬁ;meta1s, and the westward movement.



Bradford Paul -2- November 12, 1976

So, at the moment we are considering preparing NHL
nominations on only two west coast properties: a house

-or bank associated with A. P. Gianninl and the Stanford-

Lathrop House in Sacramento. And we are not certain about
the Stanford site. VWe do, however, have on our 1list the
U.8. Mint in Denver; a J. C. Penney house or store in
Kemmerer, Wyoming; and three petroleum sites in Kansas

and Oklahoma (California has a petroleum NHL in the

Pico Canyon area).

I hope that this information is of some help to you.

‘We will be happy to consider particular properties to

which you wish to call our attention, and we will look
forward to the possibility of nominating more western
sites next year.

Sincerely,

George R. Adams
Director
Historic Landmarks Project

GRA:dg



November 12, 1976

Mr. Orville G, Wilson
Archivist : G
Department 3218
Bank of America
315 Montgomery Street
San Francisco, California 94137

Dear Mr. Wilson:

At the request of the National Park Service we are

" econducting a study of nationally significant historic
commercial and industrial sites and bulldings suitable

for consideration as potential National Historic Landmarks.
This study would be incomplete if it did not 1include an
appropriate structure associated with A. P. Glannini and
the Bank of America, and we hope that you can help us

' choose the correct one.

The designation "National Historic Landmark" 1s the
highest honor accorded privately owned historic structures:
in the United States. In addition to the obvious educat-
ional benefits derived from the identification and recog-
nition of NHL's, the program 1s also designed to encourage
preservation of the nation's historic physical resources.
Private ownership and use of bulildings so recognized are
not affected, however.

We have narrowed our consideration of Gilannini
structures to these three: former Bank of Italy bullding
on the southeast corner of Clay and Montgomery Streets,
which we understand served as hils headquarters from about
1909 to 1921; the Bank of America bullding at 1 Powell
Street, which we understand served as his headquarters
from 1921 to 1®41; and "Seven Oaks," long his home in

“'™" "san Mateo.

Eventually we expect to send a staff member to
B8alifornia to visit one of these structures and prepare



Orville G. Wilson -2- November 12, 1976

9 a rather detailed NHL inventory-nomination. Before we

can decide which site best meets the criteria of selectlon
for NHL's, however, we need the following information

for each: correct address, name and address of current
owner, very brief description, indication of the degree of
alteration since the association with Glannini, and current
use.  We will be most grateful for any assistance you can -

. glve us with these questions.

For your further information I am enclosing a NHL

leaflet. If you have additional questions, please 4o

not hesitate to call or write. We look forward to hearing
from you.

Sincerely,

George R. Adams
Director
Historic Landmarks Project

GRA:dg -

Enclosure
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Mr. George R, Adams, Director

Historic Landmarks Project

American Association for State and Local History
1400 Eighth Avenue South

Nashvi |l le, Tennessee 37203

Dear Mr, Adams:

In response to your letter of October 27, please find the enclosed. Unnumbered

pages 6 and 7 will be of interest, The photographs are from our collection and
copies could be made available. Mrs, Claire Giannini Hoffman, A.P,'s daughter,
still resides in the home at 20 El Cerrito Avenue, San Mateo, and it is in

excel lent condition.

I contacted Mrs., Hoffman to inform her of the possibility of NHL recognition.

To make a long story short: she has decided that the house is to be destroyed

upon her demise. |f you would care for further detaills on the matter, please
contact me as the whole thing is rather delicate from our point of view. Although
she said that she did not mind my telling you of her decision, | don't feel that
It should become public knowledge.

If | may be of further assistance, please advise.

Sincerely,. -

B o
Herbert E, Garcia
Executive Director

HEG:pd

ACCREDITED BY THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF MUSEUMS
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o yhon - December 1, 1976

'Mr. Herbert E. Garcia

L via i ' Executive Director
& San Mateo County Historical Association
> 1700 West Hillsdale Boulevard

San Mateo, California 94402
Dear Mr. Garcila:

Thank you for your letter of November 22 and the
Yoo - helpful information about Seven Oaks. We appreciate
| QEA SR ~ your frankness about Mrs. Hoffman's intentions regarding
i the house,<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>